
 

AGENDA 
City of Lucas  

City Council Meeting  
February 15, 2018  

7:00 PM  
City Hall – Council Chambers 

665 Country Club Road – Lucas, Texas  
 

Notice is hereby given that a City of Lucas meeting of the City Council will be held on Thursday, February 15, 2018 at 
7:00 pm at Lucas City Hall, 665 Country Club Road, Lucas, Texas, 75002-7651 at which time the following agenda will 
be discussed. As authorized by Section 551.071 of the Texas Government Code, the City Council may convene into closed 
Executive Session for the purpose of seeking confidential legal advice from the City Attorney on any item on the agenda at 
any time during the meeting. 

 
Call to Order 

 
• Roll Call 
• Determination of Quorum  
• Reminder to turn off or silence cell phones 
• Pledge of Allegiance 

 
Citizen Input 

The Citizens’ Input portion of the agenda is an opportunity for the public to address the City Council on any subject.  By 
completing a “Request to Speak” form and submitting it to the City Secretary, citizens have an opportunity to speak at the 
City Council meeting.  However, in accordance with the Texas Open Meetings Act, the City Council cannot discuss issues 
raised or make any decisions but may refer items to City Staff for research and possible inclusion on a future agenda. 

 
1. Citizen Input (Mayor Jim Olk) 
 

Community Interest 
Pursuant to Section 551.0415 of the Texas Government Code, the City Council may report on the following items: 1) 
expression of thanks, congratulations or condolences; 2) information about holiday schedules; 3) recognition of individuals; 
4) reminders about upcoming City Council events; 5) information about community events; and 6) announcements 
involving imminent threat to public health and safety. 
 
2. Community Interest. (Mayor Jim Olk) 
 
  



 
Consent Agenda 

All items listed under the consent agenda are considered routine and are recommend to the City Council for a single vote 
approval.  If discussion is desired, an item may be removed from the consent agenda for a separate vote. 
 
3. Consent Agenda.  
 

A. Approval of the minutes of the February 1, 2018 City Council meeting. 

Regular Agenda 
 
4. Consider the request by Steve Lenart on behalf of Liberty Bankers Life Insurance Company for 

an update to the existing approved Development Agreement covering facilities of an off-site 
waterline extension and off-site road improvements for a parcel of land located at the northwest 
corner of Snider Lane and E. Lucas Road, otherwise known as Lakeview Downs containing 
approximately 148.7 +/- acres of land. (Development Services Director Joe Hilbourn)  

 

Executive Session 
 
5. Executive Session.  An Executive Session is not scheduled for this meeting.    
 
6. Adjournment.  
 

Certification 
I do hereby certify that the above notice was posted in accordance with the Texas Open Meetings Act on the bulletin 
board at Lucas City Hall, 665 Country Club Road, Lucas, TX 75002 and on the City’s website at www.lucastexas.us on 
or before 5:00 p.m. on February 9, 2018.   

 

____________________________ 
Stacy Henderson, City Secretary 

In compliance with the American with Disabilities Act, the City of Lucas will provide for reasonable accommodations for 
persons attending public meetings at City Hall. Requests for accommodations or interpretive services should be directed 
to Stacy Henderson at 972.912.1211 or by email at shenderson@lucastexas.us at least 48 hours prior to the meeting. 
 



Item No. 01 
 
 
 
 
 

City of Lucas 
City Council Agenda Request 

February 15, 2018 
 

Requester: Mayor Jim Olk  
 
Agenda Item:   
 
Citizen Input  
 
Background Information:  
 
NA 
 
Attachments/Supporting Documentation:  
 
NA 
 
Budget/Financial Impact:  
 
 NA 
 
Recommendation:  
  
NA 
 
Motion:  
 
NA 

 



Item No. 02 
 
 
 

 

City of Lucas 
Council Agenda Request 

February 15, 2018 
 

Requester: Mayor Jim Olk 
 
Agenda Item:   
 
2. Items of Community Interest.  
 
Background Information:  
 
NA 
 
Attachments/Supporting Documentation:  
 
NA 
 
Budget/Financial Impact:  
 
NA 
 
Recommendation:  
 
NA 
 
Motion:  
 
NA  



Item No. 03 
 
 
 
 

 

City of Lucas 
Council Agenda Request 

February 15, 2018 
 

Requester: City Secretary Stacy Henderson 
 
Consent Agenda Items:   
 
3. Consent Agenda:  
 

A. Approval of the minutes of the February 1, 2018 City Council meeting. 
 
Background Information:  
 
NA 
 
Attachments/Supporting Documentation:  
 
1. Minutes of the February 1, 2018 City Council meeting 

 
Budget/Financial Impact:  
NA 
 
Recommendation:  
 
City Staff recommends approval of the Consent Agenda.  
 
Motion:  
 
I make a motion to approve the Consent Agenda as presented.  



C i t y  C o u n c i l       1 | P a g e   
F e b r u a r y  1 ,  2 0 1 8  

City of  Lucas 
City Council Meeting 

February 1, 2018 
7:00 P.M. 

City Hall - 665 Country Club Road – Lucas Texas 
Minutes 

 
Call to Order 

 
Mayor Olk called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. 
 
City Councilmembers Present: 
Mayor Jim Olk 
Mayor Pro Tem Kathleen Peele 
Councilmember Tim Baney 
Councilmember Steve Duke 
Councilmember Philip Lawrence 
Councilmember Debbie Fisher  
 
City Councilmember Absent:  
Councilmember Wayne Millsap 

Staff Present: 
City Manager Joni Clarke 
City Secretary Stacy Henderson  
Assistant Fire Chief Lance Gant  
 
 

 
Mayor Olk determined that a quorum was present.  Everyone was reminded to silence their cell 
phones and the Pledge of Allegiance was recited.   
 

Citizen Input 
 
1. Citizen Input. 
 
There was no citizen input at this meeting.  
 
 

Community Interest 
 
2. Community Interest.  
 
Mayor Olk reminded those in attendance that the City’s annual Founders Day event would be held 
on April 14, 2018.  Mayor Pro Tem Peele also discussed the stick horse rodeo event that was part of 
Founders Day.   
 
Mayor Olk noted that the City’s General Election would be taking place on May 5, 2018, and 
Councilmember Fisher outlined details of the upcoming Primary Election to be held March 6, 2018, 
noting that Early voting begins February 20, 2018.  
  



C i t y  C o u n c i l       2 | P a g e   
F e b r u a r y  1 ,  2 0 1 8  

 
Consent Agenda 

 
3. Consent Agenda.  
 

A. Approval of the minutes of the January 18, 2018 City Council meeting.  
 
B. Adoption of Ordinance 2018-02-00875 of the City Council of the City of Lucas, Collin 

County, Texas, ordering a General Election to be held on May 5, 2018, for the purpose 
of electing two (2) City Councilmembers for Seat No. 3 and Seat No. 4 and the position 
of Mayor; designating location of polling place; ordering notice of election to be given 
as prescribed by law in connection with such election; authorizing execution of joint 
election agreement; and providing for an effective date.  

  
MOTION: A motion was made by Councilmember Fisher, seconded by Councilmember Duke 

to approve the Consent Agenda as presented.  The motion passed unanimously by a 
6 to 0 vote.  

Regular Agenda 
 
4. Consider nominations for the 2018 Service Tree Award Program.  
 
Councilmember Fisher explained that the Service Tree Subcommittee received two nominations for 
Service Tree Awards that included Tracy Matern and Tonda Frazier.  Councilmember Fisher 
discussed their contributions to the City and stated the Service Tree Subcommittee was in favor of 
recommending Ms. Matern and Ms. Frazier as recipients of the Service Tree Award for 2018.  
 
MOTION: A motion was made by Councilmember Fisher, seconded by Councilmember Duke 

to nominate Tracy Matern and Tonda Frazier as the Service Tree Award recipients 
for 2018. The motion passed unanimously by a 6 to 0 vote.  

 
5. Consider appointing a Grand Marshal for the 2018 Founders Day Parade. 
 
Councilmember Fisher noted that the Fire-Rescue Department was celebrating its 40th Anniversary 
this year and would like to nominate the City’s past Fire Chief’s to be the Grand Marshals for the 
Founders Day parade.   
 
MOTION:  A motion was made by Councilmember Fisher, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Peele to 

nominate the past Fire Chiefs as the Grand Marshals for the Founders Day parade. 
The motion passed unanimously by a 6 to 0 vote.  

Executive Session 
 
6. Executive Session:   
 
An Executive Session did not occur at this meeting.  
  



C i t y  C o u n c i l       3 | P a g e   
F e b r u a r y  1 ,  2 0 1 8  

 
7. Adjournment 
 
MOTION:  A motion was made by Mayor Olk, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Peele to adjourn 

the meeting at 7:12 pm.  The motion passed unanimously by a 6 to 0 vote.  
 
 
APPROVED:       ATTEST: 

 
        ____________________________ 
Jim Olk, Mayor      Stacy Henderson, City Secretary 



Item No. 04 
 
 
 
 
 

Requester: Development Services Director Joe Hilbourn  

City of Lucas  
City Council Agenda Request  

February 15, 2018  

Agenda Item:    
 
Consider the request by Steve Lenart on behalf of Liberty Bankers Life Insurance Company for 
an update to the existing approved Development Agreement covering facilities of an off-site 
waterline extension and off-site road improvements for a parcel of land located at the northwest 
corner of Snider Lane and E. Lucas Road, otherwise known as Lakeview Downs containing 
approximately 148.7 +/- acres of land.  
 
Background Information:  
 
The tract is approximately 148.7 +/- acres of land with 106 proposed residential lots, and one 8-
acre commercial lot.  Lakeview Downs currently has two approved Development Agreements, 
one for facilities and one for annexation. This agreement completes the original agreement by 
giving the actual amounts due for off-site improvements instead of general amounts of 
reimbursements.   

 
 Attachments/Supporting Documentation:   
 
1. Development Agreement  
 
Budget/Financial Impact:  
 
N/A 
 
Recommendation:  
 
Approve as presented. 
 
Motion:    
 
I make a motion to approve/deny the request on behalf of Liberty Bankers Life Insurance 
Company for an update to the existing approved Development Agreement covering facilities of 
an off-site waterline extension and off-site road improvements for a parcel of land located on the 
northwest corner of Snider Lane and E. Lucas Road, otherwise known as Lakeview Downs.  
 



 
PAGE 1 CITY OF LUCAS AND LIBERTY BANKERS LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY 

DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 
 

STATE OF TEXAS  § 
    § DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 
COUNTY OF COLLIN § 
 
 This Development Agreement (“Agreement”) is made by and between the City of Lucas, 
Texas (“City”) and Liberty Bankers Life Insurance Company (“Developer”), (each a “Party” and 
collectively the “Parties”), acting by and through their authorized representatives. 
 

RECITALS 
 
 WHEREAS, Developer is the owner of certain real property described by metes and 
bounds in attached Exhibit “A” (the “Property”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, City has adopted roadway impact fees pursuant to Chapter 395, TEX. LOC. 
GOV’T Code (“Roadway Impact Fee”) in the amount of One Thousand Four Hundred Fifty 
Dollars and No Cents ($1,450.00); and 
 
 WHEREAS, City has adopted water impact fees pursuant to Chapter 395, TEX. LOC. 
GOV’T Code (“Water Impact Fee”) in the amount of Five Thousand Five Hundred Fifty Dollars 
and No Cents ($5,500.00); and 
 

WHEREAS, Developer intends to develop the Property in general conformance with the 
concept plan attached as Exhibit “B” (the “Concept Plan”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, Developer intends to install or have installed a portion of Snider Lane as 
shown on the Approved Plans attached as Exhibit “C” (“Road Improvements”); and 
 

WHEREAS, Developer intends to replace an existing water line in a portion of the existing 
Snider Lane with an 8” water line as shown on the Approved Plans attached as Exhibit “C” 
(“Waterline Improvements”); and 

 
WHEREAS, the Parties desire to obtain the benefits of certainty and predictability that 

can be provided by a development agreement. 
  
 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the covenants and conditions contained in this 
Agreement, the City and Developer agree as follows: 

 
Article I 

Term 
 

 This Agreement shall commence on the last date the Parties have executed the Agreement 
(“Effective Date”) and shall terminate on the date (“Expiration Date”), that is the earlier date of 
(1) the expiration of ten (10) years after City’s acceptance of the Road Improvements and the 
Waterline Improvements; or (2) the date the Developer and City have fully satisfied all of the terms 
and condition herein; or (3) January 1, 2028; or (4) unless sooner terminated herein. 

 



 
PAGE 2 CITY OF LUCAS AND LIBERTY BANKERS LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY 

DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 
 

Article II 
Definitions 

 
 For purposes of this Agreement, each of the following terms shall have the meaning set 
forth herein unless the context clearly indicates otherwise: 
 
 “Approved Plans” shall mean the plans and specifications for the Road Improvements and 
the Waterline Improvements approved by the City and attached as Exhibit “C”. 
 

“City” shall mean the City of Lucas, Texas. 
 
 “Commencement of Construction” shall mean that (i) the plans have been prepared and all 
approvals thereof required by applicable governmental authorities have been obtained for 
construction of the Road Improvements, and the Waterline Improvements; (ii) all necessary 
permits for the construction of the Road Improvements, and the Waterline Improvements, pursuant 
to the respective plans therefore having been issued by all applicable governmental authorities; 
and (iii) the construction of the Road Improvements, and Waterline Improvements have 
commenced. 

 
 “Completion of Construction” shall mean (i) the construction of the Road Improvements, 
and Waterline Improvements have been substantially completed; and (ii) the final permanent 
certificate of completion for the Road Improvements, and Waterline Improvements have been 
issued to the City, or the City has accepted the Road Improvements, and Waterline Improvements, 
as the case may be. 
 

“Developer” shall mean Liberty Bankers Life Insurance Company and or its assigns. 
 
 “Effective Date” shall mean the last date of execution hereof. 
 
 “Force Majeure” shall mean any contingency or cause beyond the reasonable control of 
Developer, as applicable, including, without limitation, acts of God or the public enemy, war, riot, 
civil commotion, insurrection, adverse weather, governmental action or inaction (unless caused by 
negligence or omissions of Developer), fire, explosions or floods, strikes, slowdowns or work 
stoppages, shortage of materials and labor, or delays by the City. 

 
“Property” shall mean the real property described by meets and bounds in the attached 

Exhibit “A”. 
 

Article III 
Road Improvements 

 
3.1 Construction of Road Improvements.  Developer agrees to design and install the 

Road Improvements in accordance with the applicable standards, ordinances, and regulations 
adopted by the City (“City Standards”) and in conformance with Exhibit “C”. Developer shall 
submit plans for the design and construction of the Road Improvements (“Construction Plans”) to 
the City for review and approval by the City.  Subject to extensions for delay caused by events of 



 
PAGE 3 CITY OF LUCAS AND LIBERTY BANKERS LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY 

DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 
 

Force Majeure and to the City’s approval of the Approved Plans, Developer agrees, at Developer’s 
sole cost, to construct or have constructed the Road Improvements.  Developer agrees and 
covenants to cause commencement of the Road Improvements on or before February 26, 2018, 
and to cause completion of construction thereof within eight (8) months thereafter. 

  
3.2 Construction Specifications.  It is agreed upon by both Developer and City that the 

Road Improvements will be constructed per the Approved Plans.   
 
3.3 Roadway Impact Fee Credits.  Upon Completion of Construction of the Road 

Improvements, Developer shall provide City with proof of the Road Improvements cost, which 
shall include the design costs, engineering costs, material testing costs, inspection fees, right-of-
way acquisition costs, easement acquisition costs, and construction costs (the “Road Improvements 
Cost”). The proof shall be in the form of contracts and/or invoices reflecting the amount actually 
paid for the Road Improvements.  City shall credit the Developer the Roadway Impact Fees 
applicable to the Property up to the amount of the Road Improvements Cost (the “Roadway 
Improvements Credit”) in an amount not to exceed the amount of road way impact fees collected.  
The final amount of the Roadway Improvements Credit shall be agreed upon by both Parties after 
completion of the Road Improvements and established within a secondary letter agreement. 

 
3.4 Roadway Impact Fee Credit Payment.  The City shall collect the Roadway Impact 

Fee from each homebuilder constructing a home on any lot within the Property at such time the 
City issues a permit for the home construction on each lot.  The City shall pay the Developer, on 
a quarterly basis, any Roadway Impact Fees that have been collected on any lot located within the 
Property during the previous quarter.  In no event shall the City’s reimbursement to Developer 
exceed the Road Improvements Cost.  This process will continue until such time that the Roadway 
Improvements Credit amount has been fully paid to the Developer or this Agreement terminates 
pursuant to Article VI.  

 
Article IV 

Waterline Improvements 
 

4.1 Construction of Waterline Improvements.  Developer agrees to design and install 
the Waterline Improvements in accordance with the applicable standards, ordinances, and 
regulations adopted by the City (“City Standards”).  Developer shall submit plans for the design 
and construction of the Waterline Improvements (“Construction Plans”) to the City for review and 
approval by the City.  Subject to extensions for delay caused by events of Force Majeure and City’s 
approval of the Approved Plans, Developer agrees to construct the Waterline Improvements. The 
Developer agrees and covenants to cause commencement of the Waterline Improvements on or 
before December 1, 2017, and to cause completion of construction thereof within eight (8) months 
thereafter. 

 
4.2 Construction Specifications.  It is agreed upon by both Developer and City that the 

Waterline Improvements will be constructed per the Approved Plans. 
 
4.3 Water Impact Fee Credits.  Developer shall provide City with proof of the 

Waterline Improvements cost, which shall include the design costs, engineering costs, material 



 
PAGE 4 CITY OF LUCAS AND LIBERTY BANKERS LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY 

DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 
 

testing costs, inspection fees, easement acquisition costs, and construction costs of this eight-inch 
(8”) waterline (the “Waterline Cost”). The proof shall be in the form of contracts and/or invoices 
reflecting the amount actually paid for the Waterline Improvements.  City shall credit the Water 
Impact Fees applicable to the Property up to the amount of the Waterline Cost (the “Waterline 
Credit”).  The final amount of the Waterline Credit shall be agreed upon by both Parties after 
completion of the Waterline Improvements and established within a secondary letter agreement.  

 
4.4 Water Impact Fee Credit Payment.  The City shall collect the Water Impact Fee 

from each homebuilder constructing a home on any lot within the Property at such time the City 
issues a permit for the home construction on each lot.  The City shall pay the Developer, on a 
quarterly basis, any Water Impact Fees that have been collected on any lot located within the 
Property during the previous quarter. In no event shall the City’s reimbursement to Developer 
exceed the Waterline Improvements Cost.  This process will continue until such time that the 
Waterline Credit amount has been fully paid to the Developer or this Agreement terminates 
pursuant to Article VI.  

 
Article V 

Notice 
 
 Any notice to be given or to be served upon a Party hereto in connection with this 
Agreement must be in writing and may be given by certified or registered mail and shall be deemed 
to have been given and received when a certified or registered letter containing such notice, 
properly addressed with postage prepaid, is deposited in the United States mail, and if given 
otherwise than by certified or registered mail, it shall be deemed to have been given and delivered 
to and received by the Party (or such Party’s agent or representative) to whom it is addressed when 
actually received by the intended recipient.  Such notice shall be given to the Parties hereto at the 
address set forth below.  Any Party hereto may, at any time by giving two (2) days written notice 
to the other Party, designate any other address in substitution of the foregoing address to which 
such notice shall be given. 
 
 
If Notice to Developer: 
 
Mr. Brad Phillips 
Liberty Bankers Life Insurance Company 
1605 LBJ Freeway, Suite 710 
Dallas, Texas 75234 
 
With a copy to: 
 
Lenart Development Company, LLC 
520 Central Parkway E. Suite 104 
Plano, Texas 75074 
 
 

If Notice to Lucas: 
 
Joni Clarke, City Manager 
City of Lucas 
665 Country Club Road 
Lucas, Texas 75002-7651 
 
With a copy to: 
 
Joseph J. Gorfida, Jr. 
Nichols, Jackson, Dillard, Hager & Smith 
500 N. Akard 
Suite 1800 
Dallas, Texas 75201 

  



 
PAGE 5 CITY OF LUCAS AND LIBERTY BANKERS LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY 

DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 
 

Article VI 
Termination 

 
This Agreement may be terminated by: (a) the mutual written agreement of the Parties; (b) 

either Party providing written notice of such termination to the other Party if the other Party 
breaches any of the material terms and conditions of this Agreement, and such breach is not cured 
by such Party within sixty (60) days after receipt of written notice thereof (or, if cure cannot be 
completed within said time period, if cure of such breach is not commenced within such time 
period and/or not thereafter diligently and continuously pursued to completion within sixty (60) 
days after receipt of written notice thereof); (c) by City providing written notice to Developer if 
Developer suffers an event of bankruptcy or insolvency; (d) by either Party providing written 
notice to the other Party if any subsequent federal or state legislation or any decision of a court of 
competent jurisdiction declares or renders this Agreement invalid, illegal or unenforceable; or, (e) 
as provided in Article I. 

 
Article VII 

Miscellaneous 
 

7.1 Assignment of Agreement.  This Agreement may be assigned by Developer with 
the prior written consent of the City which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld, 
conditioned, or delayed.  This Agreement may not be assigned, in whole or in part, by the City. 
 

7.2 Venue.  This Agreement shall be construed under and in accordance with the laws 
of the State of Texas and is specifically performable in Collin County, Texas.  Exclusive venue 
shall be in state district court in Collin County, Texas. 
 

7.3 Legal Construction.  In case any one or more provisions contained in this 
Agreement shall be for any reason held invalid, illegal, or unenforceable in any respect, such 
invalidity, illegality, or unenforceability shall not affect any other provision hereof, and it is the 
intention of the Parties to this Agreement that in lieu of each provision that is found to be illegal, 
invalid, or unenforceable, a provision be added to this Agreement which is legal, valid, and 
enforceable and is as similar in terms as possible to the provision found to be illegal, invalid, or 
unenforceable. 

 
7.4 Savings/Severability.  In case any one or more provisions contained in this 

Agreement shall be for any reason held invalid, illegal, or unenforceable in any respect, such 
invalidity, illegality, or unenforceability shall not affect any other provision hereof, and it is the 
intention of the Parties to this Agreement that in lieu of each provision that is found to be illegal, 
invalid, or unenforceable, a provision be added to this Agreement which is legal, valid, and 
enforceable and is as similar in terms as possible to the provision found to be illegal, invalid, or 
unenforceable. 
 

7.5 Authority.  Each of the Parties represents and warrants to the other that it has the 
full power and authority to enter into and fulfill the obligations of this Agreement. 
 



 
PAGE 6 CITY OF LUCAS AND LIBERTY BANKERS LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY 

DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 
 

7.6 Entire Agreement.  This Agreement contains the entire agreement of the Parties 
with respect to the matters contained herein and may not be modified or terminated except upon 
the provisions hereof or by the mutual written agreement of the Parties to this Agreement. 
 

7.7 Consideration.  This Agreement is executed by the Parties hereto without coercion 
or duress and for substantial consideration, the sufficiency of which is forever confessed. 
 

7.8 Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed in a number of identical 
counterparts, each of which will be deemed an original for all purposes. 
 

7.9 Representations.  Each signatory represents this Agreement has been read by the 
Party for which this Agreement is executed, and that such Party has had an opportunity to confer 
with it legal counsel. 

 
7.10 Miscellaneous Drafting Provisions.  This Agreement shall be deemed drafted 

equally by all Parties hereto.  The language of all parts of this Agreement shall be construed as a 
whole according to its fair meaning, and any presumption or principle that the language herein is 
to be construed against any Party shall not apply.  Headings in this Agreement are for the 
convenience of the Parties and are not intended to be used in construing this document. 
 

7.11 Binding Effect.  This Agreement will be binding upon and inure to the benefit of 
the Parties hereto and their respective heirs, executors, administrators, legal representatives, 
successors, and authorized assigns.  This Agreement only inures to the benefit of, and may only 
be enforced by, the Parties, assignees, lender, successors, and the City.  No other person or entity 
is a third-party beneficiary of this Agreement. 
 

7.12 Authority.  The City represents and warrants that this Agreement has been approved 
by the City Council of the City in accordance with all applicable public meeting and public notice 
requirements (including, but not limited to, notices required by the Texas Open Meetings Act) and 
that the individual executing this Agreement on behalf of the City has been authorized to do so.  
Developer represents and warrants that this Agreement has been approved on behalf of Developer 
and that the individual executing this Agreement on behalf of Developer has been authorized to 
do so.  Each assignee, lender, or successor who becomes a party to this Agreement represents and 
warrants that this Agreement has been approved by appropriate action of such assignee, lender, or 
successor and that the individual executing this Agreement on behalf of such assignee, lender, or 
successor has been authorized to do so. 
 

7.13 Governmental Powers; Waiver of Immunity.  By its execution of this Agreement, 
City does not waive or surrender any of its governmental powers, immunities, or rights except as 
to the enforcement of this Agreement. 

 
7.14 No Joint Venture.  It is acknowledged and agreed by the Parties that the terms 

hereof are not intended to and shall not be deemed to create a partnership or joint venture among 
the Parties, nor to cause City to be deemed to be a constituent partner of the Developer.  

 



 
PAGE 7 CITY OF LUCAS AND LIBERTY BANKERS LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY 

DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 
 

7.15 Legal Construction.  In case any one or more of the provisions contained in this 
Agreement shall for any reason be held to be invalid, illegal or unenforceable in any respect, such 
invalidity, illegality or enforceability shall be construed as if such invalid, illegal or unenforceable 
provision had never been contained herein.  

 
7.16 Multiple Counterparts and Duplicate Originals.  This Agreement may be executed 

in any number of multiple counterparts and/or duplicate originals, each of which shall be deemed 
an original and all of which considered together shall be deemed one and the same Agreement. 
 

(signature page to follow) 



 
PAGE 8 CITY OF LUCAS AND LIBERTY BANKERS LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY 

DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 
 

 EXECUTED on this ______ day of _________, 2018. 
 

City of Lucas, Texas 
 
 
By: ____________________________________ 

Jim Olk, Mayor 
 

Approved as to Form: 
 
 
By:  ________________________________ 
 Joseph J. Gorfida, Jr. 
 (01-31-2018/94054) 
 
 
THE STATE OF TEXAS § 

§ 
COUNTY OF COLLIN  § 
 

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this ______ day of _________, 
2018, by Jim Olk, Mayor of the City of Lucas, a municipal corporation existing under the laws if 
the State of Texas, in such capacity on behalf of such municipal corporation. 

 
 
 

 ____________________________________ 
 Stacy Henderson 

Notary Public, State of Texas 



 
PAGE 9 CITY OF LUCAS AND LIBERTY BANKERS LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY 

DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 
 

 EXECUTED on this ______ day of _________, 2018. 
 

Liberty Bankers Life Insurance Company, 
a _____________________________________, 
 
By: ____________________________________ 
 Bradford Phillips 
Title: __________________________________ 

 
 
 
STATE OF TEXAS  § 
    § 
COUNTY OF COLLIN § 
 
 This instrument was acknowledged before me on the _____ day of ____________, 2018, 
by Bradford Phillips, as _________________________ of Liberty Bankers Life Insurance 
Company.  
 

__________________________________ 
Notary Public, State of Texas 

 



EXHIBIT 
“A” 

CITY OF LUCAS AND LIBERTY BANKERS LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY 
DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 

 

EXHIBIT “A” 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION 

 
BEING a 65.4629 tract of land situated in the Montgomery Birch Survey, Abstract NO. 115 and being part 
of a tract of land described in deed recorded in Volume 1975, Page 744 of the Deed Records of Collin 
County, Texas and a 83.2327 acre parcel of land out of T. D. James Survey, Abstract NO. 477, and being 
part of a tract of land described in deed recorded in Volume 480, Page 141 of the Deed of Records of 
Collin County, Texas and being more particularly described as follows: 

BEGINNING at the Northeast of said 83.2327 acre tract for the POINT OF BEGGING; 

THENCE South 01°47’06” West, a distance of 1559.81 feet to an iron rod found; 

THENCE South 88°18’53” East, a distance of 1158.69 feet to an iron rod found; 

THENCE South 02°30’00” East, a distance of 1282.52 feet to an iron rod found; 

THENCE North 60°35’42” East, a distance of 0.02 feet to an iron rod found; 

THENCE South 26°03’44” East, a distance of 29.62 feet to an iron rod found; 

THENCE South 49°46’37” West, a distance of 156.47 feet to an iron rod found; 

THENCE South 39°22’18” West, a distance of 682.78 feet to an iron rod found; 

THENCE North 87°39’20” West, a distance of 1535.59 feet to an iron rod found; 

THENCE North 02°44’57” East, a distance of 805.91 feet to an iron rod found; 

THENCE North 88°23’52” West, a distance of 568.39 feet to an iron rod found; 

THENCE North 18°17’35” West, a distance of 651.22 feet to an iron rod found; 

THENCE North 00° 11’32” East, a distance of 604.85 feet to an iron rod found; 

THENCE South 88°50’24” East, a distance of 390.20 feet to an iron rod found; 

THENCE North 01°50’24” East, a distance of 1464.26 feet to an iron rod found; 

THENCE South 88°31’45” East, a distance of 1203.50 feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING and containing 
6477178 square feet, 148.6956 acres of land, more or less.   

 
 

 
 



EXHIBIT 
“B” 

CITY OF LUCAS AND LIBERTY BANKERS LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY 
DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 

 

EXHIBIT “B” 
CONCEPT PLAN 

 
 



EXHIBIT 
“C” 

CITY OF LUCAS AND LIBERTY BANKERS LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY 
DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 

 

EXHIBIT “C” 
APPROVED PLANS 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
  
 

 

























































Item No. 05 
 
 
 
 
 

Requester: Mayor Jim Olk 

City of Lucas 
Council Agenda Request 

February 15, 2018 
 

 
Agenda Item:   
 
5. Executive Session.   
 
An Executive Session is not scheduled for this meeting.  
 
 
Background Information:  
 
NA 
 
Attachments/Supporting Documentation:  
 
NA 
 
Budget/Financial Impact:  
 
 NA 
 
Recommendation:  
 
NA 
 
Motion:  
 
NA 


	00 - 02-15-2018 agenda
	01 - Citizen Input
	02 - Community Interest
	03 - Consent Agenda cs
	03a - 02-01-2018 cc minutes
	04 - Lakeview Downs Development agreement CS
	04a - Lakeview Downs Development Agreement w attachments
	05 - Executive Session cs

